
 

         For more information on these agenda items, please visit our website at www.washingtonterracecity.com 
              
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City Recorder at 
801-395-8283. 

                                                   CERTIFICATE OF POSTING 
The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City 
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder. 

 
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
Tuesday, January 7, 2020 

City Hall Council Chambers 
5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City 

801-393-8681  
www.washingtonterracecity.com 

       
                                  
1. OATH OF OFFICE: THE OATH OF OFFICE WILL BE ADMINISTERED TO  
       NEWLEY ELECTED AND RE-ELECTED OFFICIALS  5:30 P.M. 
 
2.     ROLL CALL                                                 6:00 P.M. 
 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4.     WELCOME 
 
5.     CONSENT ITEMS 
 

5.1  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Any point of order or issue regarding items on the Agenda or the order of the agenda need to be addressed here prior 
to the approval of the agenda. 
  

       5.2  APPROVAL OF DECEMBER 3, 2019 MEETING MINUTES AND DECEMBER  
             7, 2019 COUNCIL RETREAT MINUTES 
       
6.    CITIZEN COMMENTS 

This is an opportunity to address the Council regarding your concerns or ideas that are not on the agenda as part of a 
public hearing. Please limit your comments to no more than 3 minutes.          

 
7.     COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE AND CONSIDERATION TO CITIZEN 
       COMMENTS 

Council and staff will consider and address concerns and take appropriate measures to follow up on any comments 
made in the citizen comments item on the agenda.                    

 
8.    NEW BUSINESS            
       8.1  TRAINING: OPEN MEETINGS AND NON-DISCRIMINATION TRAINING 
         City Attorney Bill Morris will present the mandatory trainings to the Council and Planning Commissioners. 
 

http://www.washingtonterracecity./
http://www.washingtonterracecity.com/


 

         For more information on these agenda items, please visit our website at www.washingtonterracecity.com 
              
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City Recorder at 
801-395-8283. 

                                                   CERTIFICATE OF POSTING 
The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City 
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder. 

         8.2 MOTION/RESOLUTION 20-01: RESOLUTION AMENDING COUNCIL 
             RULES AND PROCEDURES OF ORDER 
                Council may discuss and amend the meeting rules and procedures of order. The focus of the amendment 
                is meeting attendance. 
    
         8.3 MOTION: APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDERS ASSOCIATED WITH  
             2019 CDBG PROJECT “WATER MAINS TO FEED WATER TANK#1” 
             Council may approve change orders for the CDBG project. Council must approve all change 
                 orders when project totals exceed 10 percent of the original approved cost.  
 
           8.4 DISCUSSION/MOTION: COUNCIL APPROVAL TO PROCEED IN THE  
             PROCESS OF SELLING CITY PROPERTY ON ADAMS AVENUE 
             Council will discuss their intention to sell City Property located at approximately 5560 South Adams Avenue      
 
         8.5 MOTION: NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF MAYOR PRO TEMPE 
            Council may nominate and elect a mayor pro tempore to preside over meetings if the  
               Mayor is absent, unable, or refuses to act in the capacity of mayor. 
 
9.      ADJOURN INTO AN RDA MEETING 

    
10.      COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF 
        This is a discussion item only. No final action will be taken. 

       
11.     ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 
        This is an opportunity for staff to address the Council pertaining to administrative items. 
 
12.     UPCOMING EVENTS    
          January 20th: City Offices Closed for Martin Luther King Jr. Holiday 
          January 21ST: City Council Work Session 5:00 p.m. (TENTATIVE) 
          January 21th: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 
          January 30th: Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m. 
 
13.     MOTION: ADJOURN INTO CLOSED SESSION  

o To discuss the character, professional competence, or physical or mental health of an 
individual. 

o Strategy session to discuss pending or reasonably imminent litigation 
o Discussion regarding deployment of security personnel, devices, or systems  
o Strategy sessions to discuss the purchase, exchange, or lease of real property when public 

discussion of the transaction would disclose the appraisal or estimate value of the property 
under consideration or prevent the public body from completing the transaction on the best 
possible terms. 

 
 
14.    ADJOURN THE MEETING: MAYOR ALLEN  
 

http://www.washingtonterracecity./


 

        CC Minutes 12-03-19 

City of Washington Terrace 1 
_________________________________________________ 2 

Minutes of a Regular City Council meeting 3 
Held on December 3, 2019 4 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 5 
County of Weber, State of Utah 6 

 7 
MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 8 
Mayor Mark C. Allen 9 
Council Member Scott Monsen 10 
Council Member Blair Brown  11 
Council Member Larry Weir  12 
Council Member Scott Barker 13 
Council Member Jeff West  14 
Public Works Director Jake Meibos 15 
Finance Director Shari’ Garrett 16 
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 17 
City Manager Tom Hanson 18 
Weber County Sheriff Lt. Jeff Pledger 19 

 20 
Others Present 21 
Charles and Reba Allen, Gary Keddington, Dean Austin, Jeff Montaque, Hannah Mosher, Ulis 22 
Gardiner                            23 
 24 
1.     ROLL CALL                                                            6:00 P.M. 25 
 26 
2.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 27 
 28 
3.     WELCOME 29 
 30 
4.     CONSENT ITEMS 31 
 32 

4.1  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 33 
4.2  APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 19, 2019, MEETING MINUTES 34 

       Items 4.1 and 4.2 approved by general consent. 35 
 36 
6.     CITIZEN COMMENTS 37 
      Resident Jeff Montaque -249 W 5000 S- repeated his ask for HB411 concerning renewable energy  38 
      and to allow our energy in the City to be analyzed by Rocky Mountain Power. He stated that  39 
      there would be an opt out option for each residents. He stated that he doesn’t think we should turn  40 
      our backs on the idea until we know the cost. 41 
 42 
       Resident Ulis Gardiner -4608 S 450 W- stated that he doesn’t feel that renewable energy is worth 43 
       it and stated he does not feel that the City should pass the Resolution. He stated that solar energy 44 
       is available now for those who want it. 45 
 46 
7.     COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE AND CONSIDERATION TO CITIZEN        47 



 

        CC Minutes 12-03-19 

       COMMENTS 48 
Hanson stated that he has met with representatives with Rocky Mountain Power and stated 49 
that people can contribute to the renewable energy cause by paying an extra fee on their energy 50 
bill. He stated that there is little effect of renewable energy and the capacity is not there at this 51 
time. He stated that it does not fit our model at this time. Mayor Allen stated that he does not 52 
know how Ogden has voted on the issue, as several members were unsure on where it was 53 
heading. Mayor Allen stated that we will watch the bill. Council Member Barker stated that he 54 
believes that Rocky Mountain Power will allow people to opt in at a future time. 55 
 56 

8.     NEW BUSINESS 57 
       58 
       8.1  PRESENTATION: RECOGNITION OF COUNCIL MEMBER SCOTT MONSEN 59 
            FOR HIS SERVICE AS COUNCIL MEMBER       60 
Mayor Allen stated that Council Member Monsen served as a Planning Commissioner for 6 years before 61 
serving as a Council Member for 12 years. Mayor Allen presented Council Member Monsen with a  62 
Certificate. Mayor Allen thanked Council Member Monsen for his service.  63 
Council Member Monsen stated that he has been honored to be able to serve the City for 18 years, stating 64 
that we all need to take our part and leave our mark. He stated that he is satisfied with his service and 65 
moving forward. He stated that it has been very beneficial. 66 
Hanson thanked Council Member for being approachable and helpful with staff and the work that is 67 
being accomplished.         68 
 69 
       8.2   PRESENTATION: THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT  70 
             FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019 71 
Gary Keddington and Dean Austin of the firm Keddington and Christensen presented the FY 2019 audit 72 
report to Council. Austin stated that the audit reports on the state of the city as of June 30,2019. He stated 73 
that controls are very important and the audit evaluates financial controls and reporting. He stated that 74 
they audit any fraud concerns as well. He stated that there are three different parts of the audit 1. 75 
Independent audit report of the financial statements. He stated that the opinion that they have is the best 76 
opinion that can be rendered.  2. Internal controls. He stated that they did not find any issues with 77 
internal controls.  3. State compliance requirements. He stated that there were no findings. 78 
Austin stated that they enjoyed being here and everyone is very kind and helpful.  79 
 80 
Garrett reported on the CAFR. She stated that there are some nuances that she feels that staff can delve 81 
into further at a later date. She stated that our net position is growing. She stated that our position 82 
continues to improve. She stated that we have stable reserves. She stated that the environmental factors 83 
and institutional factors and how we respond to those factors reflect in the numbers. She stated that the 84 
CAFR does not address all the aspects of the report. She stated that she and Hanson will set up a work 85 
session to explain the complete picture. She stated that she would like to explore these aspects so that 86 
Council can understand where we are going. She stated that it provides the tools that Council needs to do 87 
their job effectively. Council Member Barker stated that he would like the work session sooner rather 88 
than later. Hanson stated that he will speak on it at the retreat this weekend.          89 
     90 
 91 
       8.3   PRESENTATION: A PRESENTATION BY WEBER COUNTY SHERIFF 92 
            RYAN ARBON 93 
Weber County Sheriff Ryan Arbon presented to Council, stating that he appreciates the partnership with 94 
the City. Sheriff Arbon stated that the administration has made many changes over the year. He stated 95 
one of the changes was the structure of the organization. He stated that there are now more “call takers” 96 



 

        CC Minutes 12-03-19 

which led to more efficiency.  97 
He stated that there is an area on the north end of the fairgrounds that has a lot of high priority calls. He 98 
stated that the county was enforcing that area. He stated that that has been changed and Ogden handles 99 
that area. He stated that they looked into public expectations while looking into policies that were in 100 
place. He stated that some policies remained the same, some were discarded, and some where added. 101 
Sheriff Arbon stated there has been a force multiplier that did not cost anything in regards to highway 102 
enforcement. 103 
Chief over corrections Chief Maragoney stated that they house federal inmates as well as state inmates. 104 
He stated that they have gotten rid of the federal inmates who were costing more money than the state 105 
inmates. He stated that it is their responsibility to offset the tax responsibility. He stated that they have 106 
created programs to help with repeat inmates. He stated that they have instituted a substance abuse 107 
treatment program a few months ago. He stated that they received a grant for the program. He stated that 108 
they have seen great progress and success with the program. He stated that they have contracted with a 109 
mental health provider.  110 
Sheriff Arbon added that accountability is a big aspect in the jail system. He stated that they have made 111 
groups that have come into the jail show them their numbers and success rates so that they can be held 112 
accountable for their programs.  113 
Council Member Brown asked how many vehicles are in their fleet and would like to know why they feel 114 
they need a huge truck. Sheriff Arbon stated that the resale value in buying a larger truck is in the 115 
thousands. He stated that you may send more money but the resale will give them some gain. He stated 116 
that because of geography, four wheel or all-wheel drive is a necessity. He stated that they carry swat 117 
equipment and other equipment which necessitates space factor. Sheriff Arbon stated that he has not seen 118 
a study saying that two officers driving is safer. He stated that presence of law enforcement is important. 119 
Sheriff Arbon stated that they have someone watching the market and they sell the vehicles when it is 120 
advantageous to sell and optimize the time they keep the vehicle.  121 
Sheriff Arbon stated that they appreciate the City and its residents for their support. 122 
 123 
 124 
      8.4   DISCUSSION/MOTION: APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED PLAN – 125 
            CAPITAL INVESTMENT PLAN PROJECT PRIORITIZATION 126 
Meibos stated that the City will be applying for 2020 CDBG funding to complete the Water Tank Project 127 
started in 2018. The final phase of the project is to extend the water feed lines from the tank as well as 128 
complete the painting and equipment to run the tank. The City needs to submit a yearly CIP Project 129 
Prioritization Plan for the application. 130 
 131 

Motion by Council Member Monsen 132 
Seconded by Council Member Barker 133 

To approve the Capital Investment Plan Project Prioritization 134 
Approved unanimously (5-0) 135 

 136 
       8.5  DISCUSSION/MOTION: APPROVAL TO MOVE FORWARD WITH SERVICE 137 
            LINE WARRANTY OF AMERICA (SLWA) 138 
Hanson stated that he has done a good review of cities who use SLWA services with all good reports. 139 
Hanson stated that this is a nice fit for the city given the infrastructure of the city. 140 
Hanson stated that there is no cap limit on claims. Hanson stated that he has been working on a contract 141 
with SLWA and our attorney. He stated that a critical point is to make sure that we do not put our city at 142 
risk. He stated that educating the residents will be a priority. Hanson stated that we are holding off until 143 
the contracts are ready and we can go live. 144 



 

        CC Minutes 12-03-19 

Council Member Brown asked what the City “cut” would be. Hanson stated that it is zero and we would 145 
not be taking any margin. Hanson stated that there will be an onboarding trading with our team, however, 146 
all the contract work will be performed by SLWA. Hanson stated that we will have our logo on their 147 
marketing material.  148 
Council Member Monsen stated that he is in favor of this and likes that fact that we have other city data 149 
that we can review. He stated that he feels that this would be good for the residents without putting any 150 
pressure on the residents. Council Member Brown stated that all of the problems that he saw before with 151 
another company have been resolved with this company. 152 
Hanson stated that it had gone out to bid, however, we did not receive any proposals. 153 
             154 

Motion by Council Member Monsen 155 
Seconded by Council Member Brown 156 

To move forward with Service 157 
Line Warranty of America Agreement 158 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 159 
 160 
      8.6   MOTION: APPROVAL OF THE 2020 ANNUAL MEETING SCHEDULE 161 
Rodriguez presented the annual meeting schedule for 2020. 162 
 163 

Motion by Council Member West 164 
Seconded by Council Member Barker 165 

To approve the 2020 Annual Meeting Schedule 166 
Approved unanimously (5-0) 167 

             168 
9.     COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF 169 
Council Member Brown asked where we are on the trip hazard list. Meibos stated that they are half way 170 
through the list. Council Member Brown also commented on the great job on snow plowing. 171 
 172 
Council Member Weir stated that he received a call that the snow has been plowed into their driveway. 173 
He asked that Public Works keep an eye out for that. 174 
 175 
Council Member West stated that the Public Works crew did a wonderful job getting the roads cleared on 176 
Thanksgiving. 177 
 178 
Mayor Allen stated that we are doing a lot better this year with the Winter Parking Ordinance. He stated 179 
that the Fire Department and Sheriff Office have been passing out fliers on cars.  180 
 181 
10.     ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 182 
Hanson stated that the Council Retreat will be held this Saturday at the Public Works Facility. It begins at 183 
8:00 am and there will be a working lunch at noon. 184 
 185 
Hanson stated that Wafflepalooza will be held on December 17th at 8:00 am 186 
      187 
11.     UPCOMING EVENTS       188 
        December 7th: City Council Retreat 189 
        December 9th: Christmas Concert 7:00 p.m. 190 
        December 25th: Christmas Holiday- City Offices Closed 191 
        December Planning Commission Meeting cancelled 192 



 

        CC Minutes 12-03-19 

             193 
12.    ADJOURN THE MEETING: MAYOR ALLEN   194 
Mayor Allen adjourned the meeting at 7:36 p.m. 195 
 196 
13.    ADJOURN INTO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING (immediately following the 197 
       Council Meeting) 198 
 199 
 200 
____________________________________    __________________________________ 201 
Date Approved                               City Recorder 202 



2019 Council Retreat Minutes 
December 7, 2019   

 
PUBLIC WORKS SHOP 1 
575 East 5600 South 2 

Washington Terrace, UT 84405 3 
7:30 Continental Breakfast  4 

 5 

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF PRESENT 6 

Mayor Mark C. Allen 7 
Council Member Blair Brown 8 
Council Member Larry Weir 9 
Council Member Scott Barker 10 
Council Member Jeff West 11 
City Manager Tom Hanson 12 
Finance Director Shari’ Garrett 13 
Public Works Director Jake Meibos, 14 
Public Works Supervisor Denzil Remington 15 
Chief Building Inspector Jeff Monroe 16 
Recreation Director Aaron Solomon 17 
Court Supervisor Jean Blair 18 
Fire Chief Clay Peterson 19 
Deputy Fire Chief Dallas Davies 20 
Lt. Jeff Pledger 21 
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 22 
 23 
Others Present 24 
 25 
8:00 Welcome: 26 

• Welcome  27 
• Pledge of allegiance 28 
• Overview of schedule 29 

 30 
8:30 Organizational Factors: An introduction to the day’s activities and understanding the flow of 31 
information and future outcomes.  32 
Hanson explained the organizational process and financial factors on how the City is run and decisions 33 
are made. He explained factors affecting financial condition which includes community, 34 
intergovernmental constraints, political culture, and disaster risks. He explained the financial factors 35 
such as revenues, expenditures, operating position, debt structure, and unfunded liabilities. 36 
Hanson stated that all of the factors come through a filter, which is Mayor, Council, and staff. 37 
 38 
 39 
9:00 Department Year in Review: Based on Policy Priority  40 

• Leisure Services  41 



2019 Council Retreat Minutes 
December 7, 2019   

 
Solomon reported on the Leisure Services Department. He highlighted that the programs have grown 42 
over the last ten years, noting that we are almost to the maximum participants in all our recreation 43 
programs. Solomon stated that he has brought the registration and communication one hundred 44 
percent online, streamlining the processes. 45 

• Finance / Utility Billing  46 
Garrett reported on the finance department. She highlighted where the Utility Billing department has 47 
been and where it is headed. She spoke about the reorganization in the department, stating that there 48 
has been a lot of training. She stated that the reorganization has allowed the department to cross train 49 
and look at the department differently, which has led to different opportunities. She stated that some of 50 
the biggest challenges are in the technology arm, noting that some of them are creating inefficiencies. 51 
She stated that we need to reinvest in some of the technologies (citing our online bill pay provider 52 
Intellipay). She stated that budget items to increase inefficiencies will be brought before Council at a 53 
later date. She stated that there is an ongoing cost to technology. 54 

• Court  55 
Blair presented on the Court, stating that grant funding is limited, however when there are 56 
opportunities, they apply and have received grants. She explained the court responsibilities and their 57 
processes. She stated that they are regulated by state mandates and BCI requirements. Blair 58 
complemented her staff and the courtroom team. The Mayor suggested revisiting the concept of life 59 
long dog licensing. 60 

• Public Works  61 
Meibos presented on the Public Works Department, stating that the crew are jack of all trades. He 62 
explained the many roles that they play. He highlighted the Water Tank Project, Meter installments, 63 
Radio readings, among other highlights. He stated that a goal of his is to videotape the complete sewer 64 
lines. He stated that at this time we do not have our own camera. He stated that the vac truck is utilized 65 
in many different ways. Meibos spoke about the trip hazard program, stating that 50 percent of the trip 66 
hazards have been eliminated. 67 

• Building and Planning / Code Enforcement  68 
Monroe presented to Council, highlighting his many responsibilities. He noted that he supervises the 69 
crossing guards, noting that they are a great group of dedicated people. Monroe stated that he also is 70 
contracted with Uintah City as their Inspector. Monroe highlighted the infill development ordinance and 71 
subsequent subdivisions.  He spoke about the General Plan completion. Monroe spoke about his role 72 
with the inspections on the Extreme Makeover Project.  73 
Monroe also highlighted code changes and regulations. 74 

• Human Resources 75 
Rodriguez reported on the responsibilities of City Recorder and the Human Resource function. 76 

• Fire   77 
Davies reported on the Fire Department, noting that they have developed a culture that people want to 78 
be a part of. He stated that recruitment efforts have increase, noting that we are currently at 23 staffed. 79 
He stated that the recruitment efforts have paid off. He stated that many of the firefighters have 80 
brought experience to the team. Davies noted that there has been great benefit to the 3 man crew. He 81 
stated that the crew has become accountable and have taken pride in their jobs. He stated that the crew 82 
has unity and are one team. Council Member Brown would like year to date fire totals, medical calls, and 83 
if they are nursing homes. 84 



2019 Council Retreat Minutes 
December 7, 2019   

 
• Sheriff Operations  85 

Lt. Pledger spoke on Sheriff Operations. 86 
• Admin wrap up  87 

 88 
10:30 Caffeine Break  89 
 90 
10:45 CIP / Otis II   91 
Hanson explained the OTIS II project to repair the infrastructure. Mayor Allen noted that OTIS II is not as 92 
extensive as OTIS I. OTIS stands for Original Terrace Infrastructure System. Meibos explained that there 93 
is an area where water vales have been identified for replacement as needed. Remington noted that 94 
fifty percent of the homes in the area have galvanized pipes. He stated that there are many breaks in 95 
that area. He stated that in some instances, they had to shut down water for 300 houses to fix one 96 
break. He stated that the pipes do not retrofit to anything else.  97 
Hanson stated that the Capital Improvement Plan has been redone this year. Hanson stated that we are 98 
trying to capture the funds from the OTIS I project without an extra burden of cost to the residents. He 99 
stated that a challenge is that infrastructure cost is always going up, where our ability to tax residents 100 
has been maxed out. Mayor Allen stated that the original GO bond captured about 5 million dollars. We 101 
should be able to capture the 5 million again for OTIS II. Garrett stated that the goal is to embed the 102 
bond in perpetuity so that it can continue to be captured. 103 
Meibos stated that there haven’t been many breaks or maintenance issues south of the area. 104 
He noted that until you dig and see what is under the ground, there is not telling what you are dealing 105 
with. An issue could arise that would move it up the priority list. 106 
Meibos stated that some of the project may be CDBG. Garrett noted that there is also a STPP grant. 107 
 108 
12:00 Working Lunch and Council Objectives: This is open space on the agenda to discuss ideas that 109 
will allow for a little deeper dive on discussion items important to the council.  110 
Mayor Allen stated that he has been invited (and any staff or council) to attend a meet and greet at the 111 
hospital on January 7th. He asked that if anyone would like to attend to let him know. He would like to 112 
see a good representation from the City.  113 
 114 
Mayor Allen spoke about Council Meeting attendance. He stated that we have a parliamentary 115 
procedure for meetings. He wanted to go over a few of the items.  He stated that it is very important to 116 
listen to the public and not have a back and forth discussion with the residents. 117 
Mayor Allen stated that the public has a right to be heard.  He stated that public comments will only be 118 
heard during the public comment portion unless they are recognized by the Mayor. He stated that he 119 
will make a point to call on people a little bit more, while exercising caution because it is a business 120 
meeting. Council Member Brown stated that he does not feel that we are as citizen friendly as we could 121 
be. He feels that we have a due diligence to serve them. He is asking for as friendly a situation can be as 122 
the Mayor feels possible so that the residents have a positive experience.  123 
Council Member West asked how we can follow up with residents who speak at the meetings. A 124 
suggestion was made that a Council Member can be assigned to follow up with the residents. 125 
Hanson stated that the Council Staff Response section is tricky because he does not always the 126 
information available.  127 



2019 Council Retreat Minutes 
December 7, 2019   

 
 128 
Mayor Allen stated that it takes 3 votes to pass an ordinance or resolution. He stated that we need to 129 
work on attendance. He would like to have an attendance policy. He stated that if we are getting paid, 130 
we need to attend the Council Meetings. He stated that he would propose a policy that if you miss one 131 
of the meetings, a deduction can be made from your pay. He is suggesting $100 a meeting.  132 
Council Member Brown agrees with the policy. He stated that people are noticing that Council Members 133 
are absent. Council Member Barker agrees, stating that he would like the input of all 5 Council 134 
Members. A discussion was held on exceptions (sickness, surgery). Council Member Barker stated that   135 
someone who doesn’t show up and doesn’t let anyone know should be docked. 136 
 137 
Council Member Brown spoke about parking issues in the City. He wanted to know how we can be more 138 
customer friendly in regards to parking and remain fair. Monroe stated that Council approved an 139 
ordinance that people can pull onto their grass during the winter months without citation. He stated 140 
that people park on the grass during the summer months and ruin their lawns. Monroe issues a citation 141 
in those instances.  142 
 143 
Mayor Allen stated that he has signed up for the VIP Program. Peterson stated that he has noticed the 144 
VIP volunteers around another city on Halloween. Lt. Pledger stated that he feels that it is a good 145 
program, but is hard to measure success because you cannot measure prevention.  146 
 147 
Peterson stated that he does not feel that we need a fire ban in the city because we are far enough 148 
away from hillsides.  He stated that that the ban could still include the parks, but not the residents.  149 
Mayor Allen stated that it doesn’t bother him, but wondered if the ban was lifted, would there be a lot 150 
more people lighting fireworks.  Hanson stated that if we have the protection in place, the responsibility 151 
goes back on the resident who chooses to light fireworks.  He would like to keep it in place because of 152 
the new fireworks and aerials that are out now.  153 
 154 
1:25 p.m.  Adjourn  155 
 156 
 157 
Approved : 158 
City Recorder: 159 



City Council 
Staff Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Author:  Jake Meibos  
Subject:  Feed / Distribution line change orders   
Date: 1/7/2020   
Type of Item: Discussion / Approval  
 
 

 
Summary: Move to approve the change orders for the Feed / line Distribution CDBG 
Project 
 
Description: 

A. Topic: Feed / Distribution line change orders 
 

B. Background:  To follow the city’s change order policy, any change orders exceeding 
10% of a $250,000 project or more must have City Council approval.  
Due to unforeseen existing pipe locations, pipe alignments and existing utilities, 
additional work and material is required to complete the scope of this project. There was 
an additional 199 lf. of 10” C900 pipe needed to connect to the existing pipe on 500 west, 
and an additional 10 service connection to the new feed line on 5350 South. To realign 
the new pipe to the existing pipe there were extra trench widths and pipe fittings required. 
To comply with the Division of Drinking Water code, any culinary water line crossing 
under a sewer main is required to be placed in a casing. There are two locations the water 
line crossed under a sewer main. Division of Drinking Water code requires an Air 
Vacuum station to be installed at any significant change in elevation creating a “high 
point” in the water line. An Air Vacuum station was installed at 5350 S. 500 W. Two Fire 
Hydrants were replaced, one being out of service, and the other is outdated and we cannot 
get parts for it anymore. The additional work and material has completed this portion of 
the project and is in compliance with all Division of Drinking Water codes and 
regulations.    
 

C. Analysis: The City staff has followed all of the Division of Drinking Water codes and 
regulations to complete this project. The total change order amount is $63,829.92. The 
sum will be itemized and allocated to the appropriate account. All accounts will stay 
within the budgeted amount for this project.  

 
 
Department Review:  Alternatives: 
 

A. Approve the Request: It is requested that the City Council move to approve the 
requested change orders that were required to complete this portion of the project. 
 

 

ADMINISTRATION 



City Council 
Staff Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Author: Amy Rodriguez 
Subject: Procedures and Order Amendment 
Date: January 7, 2020 
 
Type of Item: Discussion and Motion/Resolution  
 
Summary Recommendations:  Council may approve the changes to the Procedures and Order 
document. 
 
Description: 
 
A. Topic : In accordance with Utah Code 10-3-606, A municipal legislative body must   

       adopt  rules of order and procedure to govern a public meeting. The rules of order and  
       procedure  means a set of rules that govern and prescribe in the public meeting  
       parliamentary order, ethical behavior, and civil discourse. The rules must comply with  
      the Open Meetings Act. Council has adopted a Procedure and Order Resolution.  
 

B. Background: After review of the current Procedure and Order Resolution, the  
      Mayor brought the amendment discussions to Council at the retreat in December. 
      At that time, the discussion focused on attendance at City Council and RDA meetings. 
      In accordance with state code, the City Municipal code states that the city council may  
      compel the attendance of its own members at its meetings and provide penalties it  
      considers necessary for the failure to comply with an exercise of authority to compel  
      attendance. The discussion at the retreat focused on monetary penalties for failure to  
      attend meetings.  
      The complete Procedure and Order Resolution is attached in the packet. The highlighted  
      area (section 8) is a new section added. The section elaborates on the penalties and the  
      exemptions to the rules, along with adding an accommodation for extenuating  
      circumstances of allowing one missed meeting. 
 
C. Department Review: City Recorder, Legal 
 

Alternatives:  
A. Approve the Request: Council may choose to amend the current Rules of Procedure and 

Order. 
B. Deny the Request: Council may choose not to not to amend the current Rules of 

Procedure and Order and the current resolution will stand. 
 

 

ADMINISTRATION 



 CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE 
 RESOLUTION NO. 20-01 
 
 RULES OF PROCEDURE AND ORDER 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE CITY, 
UTAH, ADOPTING RULES OF PROCEDURES IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH UTAH CODE §10-3-606; AND SPECIFYING THE EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Washington Terrace (hereafter “City”) is a municipal corporation 
duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Utah; 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code Annotated §10-3-606 requires the City to adopt certain rules of 
procedure and order; 
 
 WHEREAS, Utah Code Annotated §10-3-717 authorizes the City to adopt such rules by 
resolution; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to comply with state law; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Washington 
Terrace, Utah, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Rules of Procedure and Order. 
The Rules of Procedure and Order as attached as Exhibit “A” are hereby adopted and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
Section 2. Effective Date. 
This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council this ___ day of _________, 2020 
 
 
___________________________________                                    Roll Call Vote 
MARK C. ALLEN, Mayor                                                     Council Member Brown ___ 
Washington Terrace City                                                        Council Member Weir ___ 
                                                                                                 Council Member Barker ___ 
ATTEST:                                                                                 Council Member West ___ 
                                                                                                 Council Member Seal ___ 
 
___________________________________ 
AMY RODRIGUEZ, City Recorder 
 
 
 



Rules of Procedure and Order 
 

1 

 Exhibit “A” 
 
 RULES OF PROCEDURE AND ORDER 
 
In accordance with Utah Code Annotated §10-3-606 the Washington Terrace City Council, 
acting as the legislative body, adopts the following Rules of Procedure and Order (hereafter 
“Rules”) for conducting public meetings held by City of Washington Terrace (hereafter “City”). 
These Rules are designed to provide for orderly conduct of a public body in a public meeting, 
with the objective of providing for full, open, and comprehensive debate of issues before the 
public body in a public forum with respect to citizen awareness and also civil decorum. 
 
These procedures neither increase nor diminish the powers or authority of the public body as 
prescribed by state law or local ordinance. 
 
I. MEETINGS TYPES AND AGENDAS. 
1. Public Meetings. All public meetings before a public body will have a notice and agenda 

that complies with the Utah Open Meetings Act, except where a closed/executive 
meeting is authorized by state law. The public meeting is to allow the public to observe 
the public meeting. An item may be placed on the agenda (for the applicable public body) 
by the Mayor, City Manager, City Recorder, or at the request of any member of the City 
Council. For any meeting, agenda items must be submitted to the City Recorder by 5:00 
PM on the Tuesday before the date of the scheduled meeting. Any item that is submitted 
to the City Recorder after the above deadline will be put on the next following meeting 
agenda. 

2. Work Sessions. A work session is a public meeting devoted to exclusively discuss 
matters specified on an agenda in an informal setting where ideas can freely be expressed 
and preliminary discussion can occur. No items are voted upon in a work session. 

3. Public Hearings. A public hearing shall be indicated on an agenda and allow for public 
input as governed by these Rules. No motion shall be made or vote taken during a public 
hearing, except a motion and vote to close a public hearing. 

 
II. THE ROLE OF THE PRESIDING OFFICER. 
1. The presiding officer has the primary responsibility to ensure the Rules are followed, 

including but not limited to: 
a. Governing a public meeting in accordance with Roberts Rules of Order, newly 

revised, as freely adapted by the presiding officer, and subject to these Rules. 
b. Calling the meeting to order. 
c. Maintaining the decorum at public meetings. 
d. Confining discussion to the agenda items. 
e. Recognizing staff presentations and recommendations. 
f. Recognizing motions and statements from the council/commission, and may 

allow audience participation at appropriate times. 
g. Understanding basic parliamentary procedure and adapting it to the public body 

as seen fit. 
h. Following the Utah Open and Public Meetings Act during the meeting. 



Rules of Procedure and Order 
 

2 

i. Courteously discouraging individuals who talk too much or too often. 
j. Courteously ensuring that those who have the floor are not interrupted and ruling 

out of order those who are not following meeting procedures. 
k. Recognizing the member offering/amending/modifying the motion, handling 

discussion, calling for the vote, announcing the vote, and then announcing the 
next order of business. 

2. The Mayor shall preside at meetings of the City Council 
3. The Planning Commission Chair shall preside at meetings of the Planning Commission. 
4. The Planning Commission is more specifically governed by Section 2.14.010 of the 

Washington Terrace City Municipal Code. 
5. The presiding officer may participate in discussion of all matters. 
6. The Mayor may vote as a member thereof only in case of a tie or where otherwise 

specifically authorized to do so by state law, and shall have no power to veto. 
7. The Planning Commission Chair shall vote and may make motions as a regular member 

of the Planning Commission. 
 
III. RULES OF CONDUCT DURING MEETINGS. 
1. Meeting conduct is as follows: 

a. Public Meeting. These meetings are not open to public comment, except at the 
sole discretion of the presiding officer. 

b. Public Hearing. A Public Hearing is only held on special occasions when required 
by law or otherwise. 
i. A Public Hearing is generally held in conjunction with a Public Meeting. 
ii. The Public Hearing may be opened and closed by motion, or by 

declaration of the presiding officer if no member objects. 
iii. Any member of the public may speak to the public body during a Public 

Hearing, subject to these Rules. 
iv. The public body may limit the time each speaker has during a Public 

Hearing to no less than three (3) minutes. 
v. Generally, the public body does not talk, respond, debate, or answer 

questions during a Public Hearing; it is a time to listen to (or hear) the 
public. 

2. All meetings shall be administered according to the Open and Public Meetings Act. 
3. Meetings shall generally be conducted as follows: 

a. Call to order by presiding officer. 
b. Opening ceremony. 
c. Item for discussion/action/presentation announced by presiding officer. 
d. Staff/other presentation. 
e. Applicant presentation, if applicable. 
f. Public comment only if a public hearing or at the sole discretion of the presiding 

officer. 
g. Discussion by members. 
h. Action by motion and vote. 
i. Adjournment upon completion/continuance of all items on agenda. 



Rules of Procedure and Order 
 

3 

4. Anyone speaking at a meeting should keep remarks applicable to the question under 
discussion/debate. 

5. Anyone speaking at a meeting shall avoid references to personalities, and avoid 
questioning motives or interjecting hostile or antagonistic behavior. 

6. Everyone shall demonstrate courtesy and refrain from conduct that disrupts the meeting. 
7. Members shall comply with the rules of ethics and avoid situations which could cause a 

reasonable person to perceive bias or an inappropriate conflict of interest. 
8. Everyone invited to participate in a meeting is to respect the principles of representative 

democracy, including the recognition that local government is to serve the best interests 
of the public as a whole, while respecting individual and constitutional freedoms. 

9. Everyone is to be conscious of efficient and effective use of limited city resources. 
 
IV. RULES OF ETHICAL CONDUCT 
Members of a public body shall comply with the Rules of Ethical Conduct set forth in Chapter 
2.24 of the Washington Terrace Municipal Code, and as may be established by state law. 
 
V. PARLIAMENTARY RULES 
The following governs parliamentary conduct of a public meeting. The City Manager or his 
designee serves as Parliamentarian, and may also advise, as necessary, for effective meeting 
governance, on any agenda items, and otherwise during the course of the meeting. Each rule is 
followed by a recommended procedure along with a purpose. This is to help guide the presiding 
officer and members of the public body with the intended application. 
 
 RULE NO. 1 – AGENDAS 
A public meeting is governed by the agenda, and the agenda constitutes the public body’s 
roadmap for the meeting. 
PROCEDURE: Each agenda item will be handled by the presiding officer in the following basic 
format: 
1. The presiding officer should clearly announce the agenda item number and should clearly 

state what the agenda item subject is. 
2. Following the agenda format, the presiding officer should invite the appropriate person or 

persons to report on the item, including any recommendation that they might have.  The 
appropriate person or persons may be the Mayor, a member of the City Council, a staff 
member, or an invited guest charged with providing input on the agenda item. 

3. The presiding officer should ask members if they have any technical questions for 
clarification.  At this point, members may ask clarifying questions to the person or 
persons who reported on the item, and that person or persons should be given time to 
respond. 

4. The presiding officer allows open public comment only if a Public Hearing is indicated 
on the agenda. Otherwise, public comment is only allowed at the sole discretion of the 
presiding officer or as provided on an agenda. If numerous members of the public 
indicate a desire to speak to the subject, the presiding officer may limit the time of public 
speakers to no less than three (3) minutes. 

5. The presiding officer should invite discussion and motions as appropriate. The presiding 
officer should announce the name of the member of the public body who makes a motion. 



Rules of Procedure and Order 
 

4 

6. The presiding officer should determine if any member of the public body wishes to 
second the motion. The presiding officer should announce the name of the member of the 
public body who seconds a motion.  If there is no second then the motion will be deemed 
to have failed, and the item may be deemed concluded without decision, unless a 
subsequent motion is duly approved. 

7. If the motion is made and seconded, the presiding officer should make sure everyone 
understands the motion.  This is done in one of three ways: 
a. The maker of the motion can repeat it. 
b. The presiding officer can repeat the motion. 
c. The Parliamentarian or City Recorder can repeat the motion. 

8. The presiding officer should now invite discussion on the motion. This discussion is 
limited to the subject of the motion that was made. If there is no desired discussion, or 
after discussion, or upon the call of a member, the presiding officer should direct a vote 
by the public body on the motion. If there has been no discussion or very brief discussion, 
then the vote on the motion should proceed immediately and there is no need to repeat the 
motion.  If there has been substantial discussion, then the presiding officer may repeat the 
motion again. 

9. The presiding officer may take the vote or direct a staff member to take a roll call vote. 
10. Certain actions require a roll call vote as directed by the presiding officer or 

Parliamentarian. 
11.       The roll call vote will begin with the Council Member seated farthest on the  right and 

names will be called in a clockwise sequence. Subsequent roll calls will begin with the 
Council Member next in succession on the panel (i.e. The roll will begin with Council 
Member A, the next roll will begin with Council Member B, the following roll will begin 
with Council Member C, and so on..).  

12.       The order of the roll call vote will be maintained by the Recorder. 
13. The presiding officer should announce the result of the vote and may announce the result 

of such action taken. 
14. Any member of a public body may give a very brief explanation of their vote cast to be 

entered in the minutes. 
PURPOSE: All meetings must comply with the Utah Open and Public Meetings Act which 
requires that a notice and an agenda for a public meeting be prepared in advance of the meeting 
and that no final action be taken on any item that is not on the agenda.  In addition, the Act 
requires that the minutes of the meeting contain certain minimum information including the 
name of any member of the public body speaking on an issue, the substance of what the member 
says, an accurate description of any action taken by the public body and the voting record of each 
individual member of the public body. 
 
 RULE NO. 2 – MAKING MOTIONS 
Any matter that requires a formal decision shall be brought before the public body by 
motion. 
PROCEDURE: The procedure for any motion shall be as follows: 
1. The presiding officer recognizes the member of the public body. 
2. The member of the public body makes a motion. (Example: “I move that ....”) 



Rules of Procedure and Order 
 

5 

3. The presiding officer recognizes a member who desires to second the motion. If no 
second, the motion fails. 

4. Vote called on motion that is seconded after any discussion. 
PURPOSE: The purpose of this rule is to limit items under discussion to only those that the 
public body want to discuss. This gives clarity as to what is being decided. It also helps to make 
sure everyone, including the person taking the minutes actually knows and can remember what 
the ultimate outcome of any discussion and debate is. 
 
 RULE NO. 3 – ORDER 
Only one question and one speaker at a time. 
PROCEDURE: Only one agenda item will be discussed at a time.  Any agenda item where 
action is being taken may have a maximum of (3) motions on the floor at a given time. There 
will only be one speaker at a time. The presiding officer recognizes the person speaking by 
granting them the floor so they may speak. 
PURPOSE: The purpose is to focus on only one agenda item and to allow members of the public 
body the ability to express their points of consideration without losing their train of thought and 
to completely finish without fear of interruption. 
 
 RULE NO. 4 – GENERAL CONSENT 
The presiding officer may use General Consent (also known as Unanimous Consent) with 
all motions, except where roll call votes are required for purposes of the meeting minutes. 
PROCEDURE: When the presiding officer feels the public body would be in general agreement, 
the presiding officer may take action barring any objection otherwise. If there is any objection to 
a General Consent stated by the presiding officer, then a formal vote is required. If there is no 
objection, after a brief pause by the presiding officer to the proposed General Consent, then the 
presiding officer declares the General Consent approved. (Example:  The presiding officer states, 
“If there is no objection, we will take a 10 minutes recess.” [Pause to see if any member objects].  
“There being no objection, we are in recess for 10 minutes.”) 
PURPOSE: General consent is helpful in expediting general routine business or when the 
presiding officer believes the presiding body is in agreement. This allows flexibility of the Rules 
while protecting the right of the majority to decide and the minority to be heard. 
 
 RULE NO. 5 – MOTION FORM 
There are generally only three basic forms of motions used: Initial Motions, Motions to 
Amend, and Substitute Motions. 
PROCEDURE: 
1. Initial Motion.  The initial motion is the one that puts forward an item for consideration. 

An initial motion might be:  “I move that we adopt ordinance number 10-1 as presented.” 
2. Amended Motion. If a member wants to change the initial motion before the public body, 

they would move to amend the initial motion. A motion to amend might be: “I move that 
we amend the motion to adopt ordinance number 10-1 with changes in paragraph 1 as 
follows….”  A motion to amend takes the initial motion before the public body and seeks 
to change it in some way.  The motion to amend must be related (germane) to the initial 
motion.  The motion to amend must not be the same as a negative vote on the initial 
motion. If the person who made the initial motion and the person who seconded the initial 



Rules of Procedure and Order 
 

6 

motion are in agreement with the amended motion (friendly), then the presiding officer 
can proceed as if the amended motion is now the initial motion without a vote. If the 
amendment is not friendly, a separate vote in the amended motion is required before 
voting on the initial motion. 

3. Substitute Motion.  If a member wants to completely do away with the initial motion that 
is before the public body, and put a new motion before the public body, they would move 
a substitute motion. A substitute motion can also be friendly or unfriendly. 

PURPOSE: “Motions to amend” and “substitute motions” are often confused.  But they are quite 
different, and their effect (if passed) is quite different.  A motion to amend seeks to retain the 
basic motion on the floor, but modify it in some way.  A substitute motion seeks to throw out the 
basic motion on the floor, and substitute a new and different motion for it.  The decision as to 
whether a motion is really a “motion to amend” or a “substitute motion” is left to the presiding 
officer. So that if a member makes what the member calls a “motion to amend,” but the presiding 
officer determines that it is really a “substitute motion,” then the presiding officer’s designation 
governs. 
 
 RULE NO. 6 – DEBATE AND ENDING DEBATE. 
The debate can continue as long as members of the public body wish to discuss an item, 
subject to the presiding officer determining it is time to move on and take action by using 
General Consent to limit debate or by a proper motion by a member of the public body to 
limit the debate.  The following motions are not debatable: a motion to adjourn (does not 
require second); a motion to recess; a motion to fix a time to adjourn; a motion to table; 
and a motion to limit debate. 
PROCEDURE: There are exceptions to the general rule of free and open debate on motions. Use 
the procedure for making motions to end ongoing and needless debate, to conclude or delay 
discussion on an item, or close a meeting. 
PURPOSE: Debate and discussion are important until they are not.  When a matter is chewed on 
enough it should be swallowed.  This rule allows the presiding officer by General Consent or the 
majority vote to end debate, after a reasonable time.  It also keeps those in a minority position on 
an issue from filibustering until they get their way. 
 
 RULE NO. 7 – THREE VOTES REQUIRED, EXCEPTIONS 
Three yes votes are required to pass any item before the City Council with limited 
exceptions.  The exceptions include a motion to go into closed session (executive session) 
which requires a 2/3 vote of the members present and when specifically provided in state 
law.  The Planning Commission decisions are made by a majority of quorum members 
present.  A quorum of the Planning Commission is four (4) members. 
PROCEDURE: If the presiding officer and all five members of the council are present, a vote of 
3-2 passes the motion.  A vote of 2-2 means the motion fails.  If one member is absent and the 
vote is 2-2, the Mayor is entitled to vote.  The Planning Commission Chair is always entitled to 
vote as any regular member of the commission. 
PURPOSE: State law sets both the number required for a quorum and the minimum vote 
required on any issue.  This rule is meant to clarify that when the entire City Council is present 
and voting then it is not a tie when one member abstains. Abstaining from a vote is considered a 
“no” vote.  If however the member is absent from the meeting for any reason and the vote is 2-2, 



Rules of Procedure and Order 
 

7 

then it may be a tie vote which entitles the Mayor to vote and break the tie.  The Planning 
Commission makes decisions by simple majority of those present.  
 

RULE NO. 8 – ATTENDANCE 
In accordance with State Code 10-3-505, the City Council may compel the attendance of its 
own members at its meetings and provide penalties it considers necessary for the failure to 
comply with an exercise of the authority to compel attendance. 
PROCEDURE: Members of the City Council, including the Mayor, are required to attend regular 
scheduled meetings. An annual meeting schedule is established by the City Council. As a 
measure to compel attendance at meetings by the City Council, the following rules are imposed: 

1. Members absent from a regular scheduled City Council meeting shall have $100.00 
deducted from their compensation. 

2. Members absent from a regular scheduled meeting of the Community Reinvestment 
Agency (formerly RDA) shall have $100.00 deducted from their compensation. 

3. Works Session meetings are now considered part of the regularly scheduled meetings and 
members are not penalized by withholding compensation if they are unable to attend a 
work session. 

4. Excused absences are not penalized. Excused absences include: accident, injury, 
bereavement, or if the absence is due to other municipal engagements. 

5. The City Council recognizes that extenuating circumstances may arise and constitute an 
excuse. As such, the Mayor or Council Member may be excused from one (1) meeting 
during a calendar year. 

PURPOSE: The purpose of this rule is to compel attendance of the City Council at regular 
meetings. It is understood that there may be circumstances that afford excused absences or 
extenuating circumstances that have been accommodated under this rule.  
 
 RULE NO. 9 – MOTION TO RECONSIDER 
A motion to reconsider may be made, but it is subject to special rules. The first rule relates 
to timing. A motion to reconsider must be made at the meeting where the item was first 
voted upon or at the very next meeting if the item is properly provided on the agenda.  In 
addition, a motion to reconsider cannot be made at a special meeting, unless the number of 
members of the public body present at the special meeting equals or exceeds the number 
present at the meeting when the original action was taken. Second, a motion to reconsider 
can only be made by a member who voted in the majority on the original motion. The 
Planning Commission cannot make motions to reconsider because once their decision is 
made it is turned over to the City Council for action or the appeal period is started as 
provided by law. 
PROCEDURE: If such a member has a change of heart, he or she can make a “motion to 
reconsider” (any other member of the public body may second the motion). If a member who 
voted in the minority seeks to make the motion to reconsider, it must be ruled out of order. 
PURPOSE: The purpose of this rule is finality.  If a member of the minority could make a 
motion to reconsider, then the item could be brought back to the public body again and again.  
That would defeat the purpose of finality. Nothing in this Rule shall be interpreted to prevent a 
member of the Planning Commission from filing an appeal to a decision made by the 
commission.  If the motion to reconsider passes, then the original matter is back before the public 



Rules of Procedure and Order 
 

8 

body, and a new initial motion is then in order.  The matter can be discussed and debated as if it 
were on the floor for the first time. 
 
 RULE NO. 10 – GENERAL PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE 
The presiding officer administers a meeting according to parliamentary procedure 
specified in Roberts Rules of Order, newly revised, as freely adapted by the presiding 
officer, and subject to these Rules. 
PROCEDURE. The presiding officer is primarily responsible to see that debate and discussion of 
an agenda item focuses on the topic, not the personalities of the members of the public body. 
There are, however, exceptions that are intended to assist the presiding officer in keeping order 
during a meeting. A speaker may be interrupted by a member only for the following reasons and 
in the form set forth below: 
1. Privilege. The proper interruption would be: “point of privilege”.  The presiding officer 

would then ask the interrupter to “state your point.” Appropriate points of privilege relate 
to anything that would interfere with the normal comfort or safety at the meeting, or 
when the misrepresentation is occurring. For example, the room may be too hot or too 
cold, a blowing fan might interfere with a person’s ability to hear, or the speaker may be 
misrepresenting. 

2. Order. The proper interruption would be: “point of order”. The presiding officer would 
ask the interrupter to “state your point”.  Appropriate points of order relate to anything 
that would not be considered appropriate conduct of the meeting. 

3. Appeal. If the presiding officer makes a ruling that a member of the public body 
disagrees with, that member may appeal the ruling of the presiding officer. If the motion 
is seconded, and after debate, if it passes by a simple majority vote, then the ruling of the 
presiding officer is deemed reversed. 

4. Call for Orders of the Day. This is simply another way of saying, “let’s return to the 
agenda”.  If a member or the Parliamentarian believes that the public body has drifted 
from the agenda, such a call may be made.  It does not require a vote, and when the 
presiding officer feels that the agenda is not being followed, the presiding officer simply 
reminds the public body to return to the agenda item properly before them. 

5. Withdraw a Motion. To withdraw a motion, the maker of the motion on the floor states, 
“I withdraw my motion”.  The motion to withdraw may require a simple majority vote if 
the motion was seconded, unless the presiding officer allows withdrawal by General 
Consent. 

PURPOSE: Debate and discussion should be focused, but free and open.  In the interest of time, 
the presiding officer may, however, limit the time allotted to speakers, including members of the 
public body. If time is limited, a member may only continue to speak after time has expired on a 
majority vote of the public body. The Rules are meant to create an atmosphere where the 
members of the public body can fairly and effectively operate, and members of the public can 
attend to watch. It is up to the presiding officer and members of the public body to maintain 
common courtesy and decorum.  
 
VI. RIGHT TO BE HEARD 
Ideally, residents should work with staff to address areas of concern. However, it is recognized 
that residents may from time to time believe it is necessary to speak to the public body.  



Rules of Procedure and Order 
 

9 

Accordingly, the public body expects any person presenting to the City Council or Planning 
Commission to speak in a civil manner, with due respect for the decorum of the meeting, and 
with due respect for all persons attending. 
1. No member of the public shall be heard until recognized by the presiding officer. 
2. The person recognized is to speak from the dais (podium) so that the comments can be 

properly recorded. 
3. Public comments will only be heard during the Public Comment portion of the meeting, 

unless the issue is a Public Hearing or is recognized at the sole discretion of the presiding 
officer. 

4. Each speaker must state his/her name and residential address. 
5. Any resident requesting to speak shall limit himself/herself to matters of fact regarding 

the issue of concern. 
6. Comments may be limited to three (3) minutes by the presiding officer. 
7. If a representative is elected to speak for a group, the presiding officer may allow an 

increased time allotment. 
8. Personal attacks made publicly toward any person or city official/employee are not 

allowed. Speakers are encouraged to bring their complaints regarding employee 
performance through the supervisory chain of command or in accordance with the City’s 
Personnel Policies. 

9. Any member of the public interrupting the proceeding of a public body, or approaching 
the dais without permission, otherwise creating a disturbance, or failing to abide by these 
Rules is deemed to have disrupted a public meeting and, at the direction of the presiding 
officer or majority of members, may be asked to leave the meeting or be removed from 
the building. 

 
VII. SUMMARY OF APPLICABLE STATE LAWS 
Utah Code §10-3-502 – Regular and special council meetings. 
Utah Code §10-3-504 – Quorum defined. 
Utah Code §10-3-505 – Compelling attendance at meetings of legislative body. 
Utah Code §10-3-506 – How the vote is taken. 
Utah Code §10-3-507 – Minimum vote required. 
Utah Code §10-3-508 – Reconsideration. 
Utah Code §10-3-601 – Business of governing body conducted only in open meeting. 
Utah Code §10-3-607 – Rules of conduct for members of the governing body. 
Utah Code §10-3-608 – Rules of conduct for the public 



City Council 
Staff Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Author: Amy Rodriguez 
Subject: Nomination and election of Mayor 
                Pro Tempore 
Date: January 7, 2020 
 
Type of Item: Discussion and Motion  
 
Summary Recommendations:  Council may nominate and elect a mayor pro tempore to preside 
over meetings if the Mayor is absent, unable, or refuses to act in the capacity of mayor. 
 
Description: 

A. Topic: The Mayor is chair and presides at all meetings of the Council. If the Mayor is 
absent, unable, or refuses to act in the capacity of mayor, the governing body may elect a 
member of the governing body to preside over the meeting as Mayor Pro Tempore.  

 
B. Background: The Mayor Pro Tempore has all of the powers and duties of the Mayor 

during the Mayor’s absence or disability. The election of the Mayor Pro Tempore must 
be made in an open meeting and entered into the minutes. The Council Member acting as 
the Mayor Pro Tempore may still vote as a Council Member, however, they cannot cast 
two votes if there is a tie vote. 

 
C. Department Review: City Recorder 
 

Alternatives:  
A. Approve the Request: Council may nominate and elect a Mayor Pro Tempore at the 

meeting to serve during any absence of the Mayor. 
 
B. Continue the Item: Council may choose not to elect a Mayor Pro Tempore at this time 

and table the item to a future meeting. 
 
 

ADMINISTRATION 



 
 

 
CERTIFICATE OF POSTING  

I, Amy Rodriguez, The undersigned duly appointed City Recorder of the City of Washington Terrace do hereby certify 
that the above agenda was posted in three public places within the City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at 
least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  
 
For Packet Information, please visit our website at www.washingtonterracecity.org 

  
 

   
 

City of Washington Terrace 
Redevelopment Agency Meeting 

Tuesday, January 7, 2020 
                                        following the Regular City Council Meeting 

City Hall Council Chambers 
5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City 

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS 
 
3.  CONSENT ITEMS 

Any point of order or issue regarding items on the Agenda or the order of the agenda need to be addressed 
here prior to the approval of the agenda. 

 
3.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
3.2 APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES FROM DECEMBER 3, 2019   

 
4.       RECURRING BUSINESS 
            
          4.1      DISCUSSION/ACTION: CONSIDERATION OF INCENTIVE OFFER FOR 
                     GOLDENWEST CREDIT UNION PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 
         
5.        COMMENTS CONSIDERED 
 
6.       ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING: CHAIR  ALLEN  
 
 
   
 

 



 
 

RDA Minutes12-03-19 

   1 
City of Washington Terrace 2 

_________________________________________________ 3 
Minutes of a Redevelopment Meeting 4 

Held on December 3, 2019 5 
following the Regular City Council Meeting 6 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 7 
County of Weber, State of Utah 8 

 9 
CHAIR, BOARD, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT  10 
Chair Allen 11 
Board Member Monsen  12 
Board Member Brown  13 
Board Member Weir 14 
Vice- Chair Barker 15 
Board Member West 16 
Public Works Director Jake Meibos 17 
City Manager Tom Hanson 18 
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 19 
 20 
Others Present 21 
Charles and Reba Allen 22 

 23 
1. ROLL CALL 24 
 25 
2. INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS 26 
 27 
3.  CONSENT ITEMS 28 
 29 

3.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 30 
3.2 APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES FROM NOVEMBER 5, 2019   31 

Items 3.1 and 3.2 were approved by general consent. 32 
 33 
4.       RECURRING BUSINESS 34 
            35 
           5.2     DISCUSSION/ACTION: SALE OF COMMERCIAL PROPERTY ON  36 
                     ADAMS  AVENUE 37 
Hanson stated that he has been working with an appraiser for the evaluation of the property south 38 
of the library. He stated that the property has some links to the library and will need to be worked 39 
through before we can sell. Hanson stated that there are some nuances with the properties 40 
concerning easements.  41 
Hanson stated that there is value in the parking lot, but he is still working on how to manipulate 42 
that. 43 
Hanson stated that there is a clause on the recorded plat that states that the city will plow the 44 
parking lot for the library. The Mayor stated that he will have discussions with the County 45 
Commissioners to see what options we have. 46 



 
 

  
 

 
  
 

Hanson stated that there are still details to be worked out. 47 
Hanson stated that Golden West Credit Union is working on a performa agreement and 48 
evaluation. He suggested that Council may make a motion allowing using RDA resources for 49 
appraisals and work that needs to be done in the general process of selling the property. 50 
 51 

Motion by Board Member West 52 
Seconded by Board Member Weir 53 

To grant permission to proceed using expenditures 54 
of RDA funds in preparation for sale of the  55 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 56 
 57 
5.        COMMENTS CONSIDERED 58 
There were no comments considered. 59 
 60 
6.       ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING: CHAIR  ALLEN  61 
 62 
Chair Allen adjourned the meeting at 7:48 p.m. 63 
 64 
_________________________________     _______________________________ 65 
Date Approved                                             City Recorder 66 
   67 
 68 


	staff report Mayor Pro TEmpore 010720.pdf
	Author: Amy Rodriguez
	Subject: Nomination and election of Mayor
	Date: January 7, 2020
	Type of Item: Discussion and Motion
	Summary Recommendations:  Council may nominate and elect a mayor pro tempore to preside over meetings if the Mayor is absent, unable, or refuses to act in the capacity of mayor.

	City Council
	Staff Report

	staff report Procedures and Order.pdf
	Author: Amy Rodriguez
	Subject: Procedures and Order Amendment
	Date: January 7, 2020
	Type of Item: Discussion and Motion/Resolution
	Summary Recommendations:  Council may approve the changes to the Procedures and Order document.

	City Council
	Staff Report

	staff_report Feed line  Distribution C-O.pdf
	Author:  Jake Meibos
	Subject:  Feed / Distribution line change orders
	Date: 1/7/2020
	Type of Item: Discussion / Approval
	Summary: Move to approve the change orders for the Feed / line Distribution CDBG Project

	City Council
	Staff Report


